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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This is a large rectangular three story building of white marble on a
gray granite base. The four cormners are emphasized by slightly projecting
corner pavillions surmounted by stepped copper roofs and surmounted by
sculptural groups, each composed of four female figures supporting a globe.
The building is in the Italian renaissance style, the principal facade
facing Lafavette street with identical side facades facing Camp and Magazine
streets. The rear elevation on Capdeville street formerly contained the
post office loading platform on the first floor. There are two light
courts, roofed above the ground floor level with skylights and with windows
admiting light to the center second floor courtroom and to the surrounding
corridors of the second and third floors.

The first floor is heavily rusticated, with fifteen deeply recessed
arched openings between the end pavillions on the front and seven similar
ones on the two side elevations. The end pavillions on each elevation
each contain a single arched opening on the first floor surrounded by a
frontispiece treatment of two free standing rusticated columns supporting
a decorated Doric entablature and belustrade,The window above has an elaboratg
enframement with consoles and a curved broken pediment with sculptured
shield,helmet, etc. The upper stories of each end pavillion are divided
into three bays by Ionic pilasters extending through the two stories and
supporting the main entablature of the building, the frieze of which is in-
seribed with names and dates of former Chief Justices of the Supreme Court.
The cornice is ornamented with dentils and modillions. This entablature
extends entirely around the building, with a panelled parapet above it on
the end pavillions, with an open balustrade between the pavillions,

The walls of the second and third stories of ‘the Lafayette street
elevation have casement windows centered over the first floor openings,
those on the second story being tall casements with moulded architraves and
marble balustrades and having alternate curved and triangular pediments.
supported on consdles. The center window has a sculptured shield and flag
pole support set into the pediment. The third story windows are nearly
square casements with moulded enframements and carved shields as key stones,
The balustrade, at the center of the facade above the third story, is em-
bellished with sculptured shield and helmet.

The two upper stories on the Camp and Magazine street sides of the
building have colonnades of eight free standing marble Ionic columns, on
pedestals with open balustrades. The three center bays of each colonnade
have three large circular head windows that admit light into the courtrooms
that exterid through the two upper stories.

The former post office lobby extends around the Camp and Lafayette
steet sides of the building and has an elaborate plaster vaulted celling,
marble colums,etc. The three courtrooms on the second floor are elabor-
ately finished with coffered and beamed ceilings, wall panelling, etc. All
these good interior features have been retained and restored in the recent
renovations. The original wood casement windows and doors have been re-
placed with metal and the former loading platform has been enclosed,with
|_entrances added to basement parking spaces.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The former post office and courthouse is a significant example of
the ecclectic style of the early twentieth century. The building was
designed by Hale and Rogers -(James Gamble Rogers) ope of the prominent
American architectural firms of the period; Wells Brothers of New York
were the builders. Work was begun in 1909 and completed in 1915 on the
site which had been successively occupied by the Odd Fellows Hall, built
in 1852 and St. Patrick's Hall which replaced it after its destruction
by fire., Later it was the site of the Public Library. The present build-
ing has occupied this important historic site overlooking Lafayette Square
for a longer time than any of its predecessors.

It is important architecturally because of its monumental quality
and its superior workmanship and materials., Its architectural details
and sculptural embellishments exhibit the high order of craftsmanship
characteristic of the period of its contruction. The copper and bronze
sculptured groups that surmount the building at its four corners are the
work of the noted American sculptor, Daniel Chester” French who did the
figure of Lincoln in the Lincoln Memorial in Washington at about the same
time.

The building was occupied on the ground floor by the U.S. Post Office
until 1963 and at the same time the Courts that occupied the upper floors
were temporarily relocated pending renovation of the building. Following
hurricane Betsy in 1965 the then vacant building was occupied by the Mc
Donogh #35 Public School which had been destroyed by the hurricane. It
served this use until January 1971 when renovation was begun for the ac—
comodation of the United States Court of Appeals - Fifth Circuit. Plans
and specifications were prepared by staff architects and engineers-of
Region 7, Public Buildings Service and work was begun in April 1971 and
completed in September 1972 at a cost of $3,536,358. George E.-Jensen,
Inc. of Mobile, Alabama was the contractor. {finj”~/




Samuel Wilson, Jr., A Guide to Architecture of New Orleans, 1699-1959,

N.Y. 1959, p. 58.

Mary Lou Christovitch, Roulac Toledano, Betsy Swanson, Pat Holden, Authors
and Editors, New Orleans Architecture, Volume II, The American Sector,

Gretna, 1972, p. 119.
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